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Auditors’ report

To the shareholders of Cairo for Investment and Real Estate Development (S.A.E.)

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Cairo for Investment and
Real Estate Development (S.A E.) (the “Parent Company™) and its subsidiaries (the “Group™) which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 August 2019 and consolidated
statements of profit or loss, other comprehensive income, changes in shareholder’s equity and cash
flows for the vear ended 31 August 2019, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other notes.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Group’s management.
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Egyptian Accounting Standards and in light of the prevailing
Egyptian laws. Management’s responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
‘nternal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. Management’s
responsibility also includes selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Egyptian Standards on Auditing and in light of
the prevailing Egyptian laws. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
snternal control relevant to the Group’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management. as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "SAE"

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated statement of financial position - As of 31 August 2019

(All amounts are shown in Egyptian Pounds)

Non-current assets
Fixed Assets
Projects under construction
Works in progress
Financial Investments in associates
Investments held to maturity
Goodwill
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Investments held to maturity
Inventories
Debtors and other debit balances
Cash on hand and bank balances
Total current assets
Total assets

Sharehoulders’ Equity
Sharehoulders' Equity attributable to the
shareholders of the Parent Company
Paid-up share capital
Reserves
Retained earnings
Total Sharchoulders' equity attributable to
sharcholders of the parent company
Non-controlling interests
Total Shareholders’ cquity
Non-current liabilities
Non-current portion of borrowings and credit facilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Provisions
Creditors and other credit balances
Advance revenues
Current income tax liabilities
Current portion of borrowings and credit facilities
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total liabilities and Shareholers' equity

- The accompanying notes on pages 7 to 52 form an integral

- Limited auditors report attathed

EMaha ed E
Chief financial gfficer

4 November 201

Note 2019 2018
6 747.302,108 743,344,427
7 214,568,829 7,044,657
8 85,856,401 24,097,785
9 57,421,325 32,041,070
1 3 1,000,000
31 803.420 5.936.,481
1,105,952,083 813,464,420
B 1,000,000 =
12 661.838 2,527,821
13 201,301,052 65,820,411
14 163,026,674 91.503.367
365.989,564 159,851,599
1.471,941.647 973.316.019
15 233,116,130 219,116,130
16 222,538,045 32,003,019
378.014,151 192.088.678
833,668,326 443,207,827
30 56.370,363 61,170,738
890,038,689 504.378.565
17 66,879,677 24,991,787
21 3.934.028 3,592,063
70,813,705 28.583,850
22 33,205,054 27,505,492
18 177,431,195 96,672,075
19 211,730,601 185,203,224
20 66,104,436 41,075,377
17 22.617.967 89.897.436
511,089,253 440,353,604
581,902,958 468,937,454
1.471.941 647 973,316,019

part of the consolidated financial statements
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.AE."

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated statement of profit or loss - For the vear ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in Egyptian Pounds)

Operating revenue

Operating costs

General and administrative expenses
Goodwill Impairment
Provisions
Other income
Operating profits
Finance costs - net
Profit before tax
Current tax
Deferred tax
Profit for the year

Profits attributable to
Owner's of the Parent Company

Non-controlling interests

Earning per share
Basic and diluted earning per share

- The accompanying notes on pages 7 to 52 form an integral

Note 2019 2018

3 704,679,311 517,492,002
24 (328.,484,348) (248.604,187)
376,194,963 268,887,815

25 (125,655,955) (92,273,085)
31 (5,133,061) 2
22 (6,541,606) (2,752,426)
27 4,911,104 7,209,489
243,775,445 181,071,793

28 13,791,729 (15,507,558)
257,567,174 165,564,235

20 (64,650,433) (37,982.716)
21 (341.965) (1,209.836)
192,574,776 126,371,683

188,261,990 119,732.287

30 4,312,786 6,639,396
192,574,776 126,371,683
_— VW
32 0.28 _—
_— 7

part of the consolidated financial statements
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "SAE"
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated statement of other comprehensive income - For the vear ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in Egyptian Pounds)

Note 2019 2018
Profit for the year 192,574,776 126,371,683
Other comprehensive income T =
Comprehensive income for the year 192,574,776 126,371,683
Comprehensive income atiributable to
Owner's of the Parent Company 188.261,990 119,732,287
Non-controlling interests 30 4312786 6,639,396
192,574,776 126,371,633

- The accompanying notes on pages 7 to 52 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "SAE"

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated statement of cash flows - For the vear ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in Egyptian Pounds)

MNote 2019 2018

Cash flows from opcratine activities
Profit before tax 257,567,173 165,564,235
Adjustments to reconcile profits to cash flows from
operating activities
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment & 58,583,648 45,628,266
Finance costs 2 11,311,431 26,411,785
Finance income 28 (25,629.112) (11,010,324)
Goodwill Impairment 31 5,133,061 -
Impairment losses on investments in associates 25 - 303,835
Impairment losses on debtors and other debit balance 23 3,661,205 1.348,293
Impairment losses on debtors and other debit balance no 13
longer required # (449,774) (243,145)
Share of profit of associates 27 - (536,070)
Provisions made 22 0,541,606 2,752,426
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 27 (2,141) (1,902,212)
Provisions used 22 (842,044) (1,258,559)
Gain on reverse of the other debit balances - (1,448.387)

Operating profits before changes in current assets and

liabilities 315875053 225,610,143
Changes in current assets and liabilities
Change in inventories 1,865,983 (1,095,717}
Change in debtors and other debit balances (138,692,072) 1,831,627
Change in creditors and other credit balances and accerued 108,262,393 28,987,258
Income tax paid 20 (39.621,374) {22,095,619)

MNet cash flows generated from operating activities 247,689,983 133.237.692
Cash flows from investine activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment f (53,991,706 (60,754,575)
Payments for purchase non-controlling interest shares (11,174,988) (2,477,598)
Interest received 25629112 11,010,524
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3,925

Payments for projects under constructions 7
Payments for work in progress
Acquisition of investments in associates
Change in restricted cash
‘\’e: cash flows used in investing actwltles

Cash flows from financing activities ﬁh 'x
Proceeds from borrowings and credit facmt:d'rs el Al B

Payments to borrowings and credit facllitles D Ly e
Finance costs paid xr.._ -‘I;qqh,..m.p
Share Premuims o R /
Increase in Capital \Yrerie, s
Dividends paid T —

Net cash flows used in financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents during the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 14

(216,075,579)

(50,728,175)

(61,758,616) (7,850)
(25,380,255) (10,254,959)
2,440,008 (2.447.410)
(340,308,099) (115,660,243)
41,887,890 24 318,515
(67.279.469) (29.901,975)
(11,311,431) (18,951.541)
196,000,000 -
14,000,000 -
(6.715.559) (59.117.793)
166,551,431 (83,152,794)
73,963,315 34,424,655
89,055,957 54,631,302
163,019.272 89,055,957

- The accompanying notes on pages 7 to 52 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

1. Introduction

Cairo for Investment and Real Estate Development (the “Parent Company™) was established under a
Preliminary contract dated 15 March 1992 which was ratified on 17 August 1992 under ratification
minutes No. 1978 (d) of the year 1992 at Real Estate Publicity Office in Nasr City. The Company is
registered under the commercial register number 27343 1 -dated 22 August 1992,

The Parent Company's headquarters is located in 36 Sheikh Ahmed EI Sawy Street, Nasr City, Cairo.

The Parent Company was founded for the purpose of: construction, foundation and management of
educational institutions in accordance with the applicable laws and decrees, administrative housing,
below average housing, medical institutions, trade of medical tools and hospitals equipment,
providing petroleum services, buying and selling and the division of land, taking into account the
provisions of law No. 143 of 1981, engaging in import and export activity, sale and purchase of
residential apartments, administrative units and real estate, without violation to the decision of the
Minister of Economy and Foreign Trade No. 204 for the year 1991. The Parent Company may have
interests or participate in any mean with companies having similar activities or which may assist it in
achieving its purpose in Egypt or abroad. The Parent Company may also have the right to be merged
or acquire the above mentioned entities under the provisions of law and its executive regulations. The
Parent Company has added to its purpose the activity of real estate development, general and
specialised contracting activities and commercial agencies with Egyptian and foreign companies.

The main sharcholder of the Parent Company is Social Impact Capital “Ltd.” owning 51.22%.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of directors at 4 November 2019.

Taking into consideration that the General Assembly Meeting have the right teamend the-financial
staternents after 1ssuance. /
ol
- . \
[ g Sl
2. Accounting policies \ "-,_J“!ﬂ:‘; & I

Significant accounting policies used in the preparation of the consolidat
summarised below:

A. Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Egyptian
Accounting Standards (EASs) and applicable laws and regulations which have been consistently
applied over the financial year and all prior years unless otherwise stated. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The Group presents its assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position
based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is classified as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or used in the normal operating course;

Held primarily for trading;

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the financial reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the financial reporting period.

# * ¥ *
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements (continued)
All other assets are classified as non-current assets.
A liability is classified as current when:

It is expected to be settled in the normal operating course;

Held primarily for trading;

It is required to be settled within twelve months after the financial reporting date; or

The entity does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the end of the consolidated financial reporting period.

+ % ¥

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
classified as non-current.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Egyptian Accounting
Standards (EASs) requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
Note (4} clarifies the most significant accounting estimates and personal judgements applied for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

International Financial Reporting Standards apply for the topics not covered by the EASs until the
issuance of a related EAS discussing such topics.

B. New issued and amendments made to EAS's, but not yet applied

On 28 March 2019, the Minister of Investment issued a decision No. 69 of 2019 to amend certain
provisions from Egyptian Accounting Standards which include certain new accounting policies
and amendments to existing standards. Such amendments were published among the accounting
standards in the official gazette on 7 April 2019. Below are the significant amendments
summarised in the issuance of three new standards which are adopted in the financial periods
starting on the first of January 2020 or afterwards:

i. Accounting standard No. 47 “Financial Instruments™
This standard is adopted to the financial periods starting on the first of Januat} 2020 or
afterwards. Parl;.r s.dnptmn is allowed, subjcﬂ o the aduptmn of the Egyptt ﬁ.ccountmﬂ

f \

The standard includes rating levels and a new measurement method o 'I;he f" \l
which reflects the business model through which the assets can be ma agtbd, ;5’ agthe
characteristics of its cash flows. a Ty {’(ﬁ’"

cﬁ{ I‘ff "Q
EAS 47 replaces the "incurred loss” model in EAS 26 with the "expected fut lﬁﬁ’ﬁ.’éh ek

1. Accounting Standard No. 48 “Income from contracts with customers™
This standard is adopted to the financial periods starting on the first of January 2020 or
afterwards. Early adoption is allowed, subject to the adoption of the Egyptian Accounting
Standard Nos. (1), (25), (26) and (40) which are collectively amended at the same time.

This Standard sets out a comprehensive concept framework by determining the amount and
timing of recognition of income. This Standard replaces EAS |1 “Revenues” and FEAS 8
“Construction Contracts”.
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

New issued and amendments made to EAS's, but not yet applied (continued)

iil. Accounting Standard No. 49 “Leases”
This standard is adopted to the financial periods starting on the first of January 2020 or

afterwards. Early adoption is allowed, and is applied along with EAS 48 “Income from
contracts with customers™ at the same time,

EAS 49 provides lessees with a single accounting model for leases. The lessee shall recognise
the right of use asset which represent the lessee's right to use the relevant asset in addition to

the lease liability that represents the obligation to pay the lease payments. There are optional
exemptions for short-term leases and leases for low-value assets.

EAS 49 replaces EAS 20 "Accounting Standards and Regulations Related to Finance Lease”

C. Basis of consolidation
(1) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries

are fully consolidated {rom the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Based upon the Presidential Decree No. 117 of 2013, the Parent Company established Badr
University. Based on the same decree, the Group as the Founder is entitled to surplus

revenues after deduction of expenses as determinable by the Board of Trustees of the
University.

The consolidated financial statements include the following subsidiaries:

Country of Percentage of
_ineorporation ownership
Cairo Educational Services F < /8 ™\ Egypt 69.4%
Upper Egypt Educational Services / ? %ﬁ“’ \Eg}fpt 99%
Egyptian Educational Systems B e | \Egypt 100%
Global Educational Technologies | #.. 7<) 7red. 3 [Egypt 79.5%
Cairo Egypt for Educational Premises ~, 79, }9%:""" Egypt 99.9%
Futures and Nations Company * N, g m / Egypt 50%
Emco for Systems and Computers N 19 @ ™ Egypt 82.5%
Egyptian Schools Company T— Egypt 61%
Educational Systems International Egypt B0%
Badr University Egypt 100%

* Management of the Parent Company has assessed the degree of the Group’s influence

over the Futures and Nations Company and concluded that the Company has the control
over operating and financing policies of the Company. Consequently, the investment has
been accounted for as an investment in subsidiaries and the Company is included within
the consolidated financial statements.

Ry
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

i. Acquisition method
The Group applies the acquisition method to process each of the business combination
operations.

The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured based on the fair
value accounted for as the fair values of the assets transferred and the liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred also includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. In any business combination, the Group recognises any non-
controlling interests in the subsidiary at the proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

[f the business combination is achieved in stages, the Group re-measures the previously
held equity interest i the acquiree at fair value in the acquisition date. Any gains or

losses arising from re-measurement are recognised within other comprehensive income
items.

Inter-company assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows related to
transactions between the Group's entities are eliminated. When necessary, financial
statements of the subsidiaries are properly adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.

il. Changes in ownership interests held within controlling interests
When the ratio of equity held within controlling interests changes, the Group adjusts the

amounts recorded for controlling and non-controlling shares to reflect such changes in the
relevant shares in the subsidiary. The Group recognises directly within the equity of the
parent company any difference between the amount of changing the non-controlling
shares and the fair value of the consideration paid or received.

iii. Disposal of subsidiaries
When the Group ceases to have control, the Group recognises any retained investment in
the entity that was a subsidiary at its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
resultant change recognised as profit or loss attributable to the shareholders of the parent
company.

v. Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the excess of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
' the acquisition-date fair value of anv_previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
identifiable net é’f"‘ﬁ @qus:g?%ﬁﬁd contingent liabilities at the date of
o7 acquiisition. If the : trafisterred.  non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
o= o the date of acquisitipn faidkysld . ’s equity previously held at the acquiree is
?-.*™ less/than the net offthe identifjable acfpired assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities
€n, " ... @ asstimed at the date bf acquisition, the%]nup recogfises the gain resulting from profit and
S t;,lO'SS at the date of a uisntlomm‘gﬁm’&c attriuted to the Group.
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."

AND ITS

SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the vear ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(2) As

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is
allocated to each of the cash generating units (“CGUs™), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the business combination. Each unit or group of units to which
the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

Measurement period

The measurement peried is the period required for the Group to obtain the information
needed for initial measurement of the items resulting from the acquisition of the
subsidiary, and does not exceed one year from the date of acquisition. In case the Group
obtains new information during the measurement period relative to the acquisition,
amendment is made retrospectively for the amounts recognised at the date of acquisition.

sociates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control.
Generally, this is the case when the Group owns directly or indirectly between 20% to 50% of
the voting rights in the associate.

11.

1ii.

Equity method

Under the equity method, the investment in associates is recognised at the acquisition
cost, and the cost is modified subsequently after the date of acquisition to the changes
during post-acquisition period on the Group's share in the net assets of the associates. The
Group's profit or loss includes its share in the associate’s profit or loss, and the
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income includes the Group's share in the
associate's other comprehensive income. The carrying amount of the investment is
adjusted by the Group's total share in the changes in equity after the date of acquisition.

Changes in equity

[f the Group's equity in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the reduction rate of the amount of profit or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss when relevant
assets or liabilities are disposed of.

Losses of associates
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, the Group ceases to recognise its share in the additional losses. Once the
Group's share is reduced to zero, additional losses are recognised but only to the extent of
incurred legal or constructive obligations or payments made on behalf of the associate.
When those companies realise profits in subsequent periods, the Group resumes to
recognise its share in those profits, but only after its share of profits equals its share in
unrecognised losses.

-

E : — "
L "!!r.-_.-.é'- asabtions with associdtesbedics S 2 JbLﬂJ'IEJ;-

% 4 1 relati:qn to profits orflos tions between the Group and the
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

D.

v. Goodwill arising from investment in associates
The excess of the total consideration transferred over the Group's share in the net fair
value for the acquired determinable assets and assumed liabilities at the date of
acquisition is recognised as goodwill.

The goodwill resulting from contribution in associates is recognised within the cost of
investment in associates net of the accumulated impairment losses in the investment value
of associates and shall not be recognised separately. Impairment of the goodwill is not
tested in associates separately. Impairment is rather tested in the carrying amount of the
investment as a whole - as a separate asset- by comparing its carrying amount with the
recoverable amount. Tmpairment losses recognised in this case are not allocated on any
asset. Therefore, any reverse settlement of the impairment losses will be recognised to the
extent in which the recoverable amount subsequently increases, provided it does not
exceed the impairment losses previously recognised.

Forecign currency translation

(1) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Group operates (‘the functional currency” ). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Egyptian Pounds, which is the Group's
functional and presentation currency.

(2) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions during the period are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the re-evaluation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss at the date of the consolidated financial position.

Non-monetary items measured in historical cost and denominated in foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction.

Property, plant and cquipment

The Group applies the cost model at the measurement of property, plant and equipment, and those
are recognised on their costs net of the accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of property, plant and equipment includes any costs directly associated with
bringing the asset to a working condition for its use intended by the management of the Group.

T Gmup ::apitghses subsequent costs of the acquisition of the property, plant and equipment as
separat , when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and the

/ cost.off can\tbe meﬂsu;;d_;ehﬂ.hhihi-&tg recognises, within the carrying value of a
,.p‘l"ﬂpjﬂﬁ}ﬁ..’? and equipm yiace part of that asset at the date such costs

are ;nﬁt:f"reﬂ' hese costs a ? m wrnmg useful life of the related asset or the

“estimated uaﬁfu! life, whichdver i ¢ Qgving t of replaced parts are derecognised.

]T::é.vf’aumr%’m ses the dpsts of daipy. . femigpeng of r.hf.'-' roperty, plant and equipment in the
lidated Statement of prafit or 1{:1%% : O o i
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(.

The straight line method is used to allocate the depreciation of property, plant and equipment
consistently over their estimated useful lives, except for lands, which are characterised with
unlimited estimated useful life. Below are the estimated useful lives of each type of the assets
aroups:

Buildings, premises and facilities %
Devices. furniture, and fittings 208
Computers 20%
Vehicles 20%
Tools and equipment 20%

The Group reviews the residual value of property, plant and equipment and their estimated useful
lives at the end of each financial vear, and adjust when expectations differ from previous
estimates and accounted for prospectively.

The carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment is reduced to its recoverable amount, if
the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount. This reduction is considered
as a loss resulting from impairment.

Gains or losses on the disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment from the books are
determined based on the difference between the net proceeds from the disposal of the item and the
carrying amount of the disposed item, and the gain or loss resulting from the disposal of property.
plant and equipment is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss within “other
revenues”.

Projects under construction

Projects under construction are stated at cost, which includes all direct costs related and required
to bring the asset to the condition needed for operation and to be used in the intended purpose.
Projects under construction are transferred to property, plant and equipment item when they are
finalised and are ready for their intended use.

Works in progress

Works in progress are stated at cost and include all direct costs related and required to bring the
asset to the condition needed for sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not ready for use are tested
annually for impairment at the date of the consolidated financial statements.

Non-financial assets that ha EWW which are sub}pcf to depreciation or
amortisation, are tested for im M fitsor changes in cil;cu[nstqn iCdte that
the asset incurred impairment {osse 7 P M ;
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

The asset is tested for impairment by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of sale or its
value in use, For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are allocated at the lowest levels for
which there are largely independent cash inflows from other inflows of assets or groups of assets
(cash-generating units).

The Group recognises impairment losses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss whenever
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

At the end of each financial period, where there is an indication that the carrying amount of any
asset, other than goodwill which is recognised in prior years, is impaired, the Group then
evaluates the recoverable amount of that asset.

Impairment losses recognised in prior years are reversed when there is an indication that such
losses no longer exist or have decreased. Loss of impairment. which should not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation), are also reversed. Such
reversal is recognised in consolidated staterment of profit or loss.

I. Financial assets
(i} Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables and held-to-maturity
financial assets. The classification of a financial asset depends on the purpose for which it is
acquired. Management determines such classification at initial recognition of financial assets.

Loans and receivables:

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payment
date that are not quoted in an active market. Financial assets listed in such Group are
presented as current assets if expected to be recovered within a maximum period of 12
months from the date of the end of the financial period. The Group’s loans and receivables
include “debtors and other debit balances” and “cash and cash equivalents” and “balances due
from related parties’ and ‘accrued revenues’ in the consolidated statement of financial
POSIIOon.

Held to maturity financial assets:

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable amounts and fixed maturities that the Group has positive intention and ability to
hold till maturity.

Held to maturity investments are clagsi
maturities less than 1§ momths
they are classified wit irf current assé

Athin non-current assets, excepl investments with
'ﬁ}mnsaltdaﬁed financia 051t|0anatq§ iﬂ:sn,

- o
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

{All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Financial assets (continued)

J.

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

A financial asset is recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the financial asset.

The acquisition of a financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus other costs directly
associated with the execution of the transaction.

(iii) Subsequent measurement
Loans and receivables and held to maturity financial assets are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest rate. Interests calculated are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss within net finance costs.

(iv) De-recognition
Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial

assets have expired or where the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.

The financial asset is derecognised at its carrying amount at the date of de-recognition, and

profits (losses) of de-recognition is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
within the other revenues.

The profits/ (losses) of de-recognition of financial asset represents the difference between the
carrying amount at the date of de-recognition and the proceeds resulting from the de-
recognition of the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses impairment at end of each reporting period whenever there is objective
evidence that a specific financial asset or a group of financial assets may be impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a loss event) and that event (events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Objective evidence of impairment may include significant financial difficultics experienced by a
debtor or a group of debtors, violation of contract terms such as default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that thev will enter bankruptey or other reorganisation,
where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the esti d Tutare cash
flows since the initial recognition or national or domestic conditions that co
the Group's assets. | B o PPy - ﬁL}BIZS ) =
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

M

For loans and receivables. the amount of loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is immediately reduced and the losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Loans expected to be uncollectible are written off by
deduction from the relevant provision, and any subsequent proceeds are recognised as revenues in
the statement of profit or loss. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable exchange
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment losses are the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on
the basis of an asset’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an

improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
directly in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are evaluated at the lower of actual cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined
using the moving average method and includes purchase cost and other direct costs. The net
realisable value comprises the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less sale

expenses. Allowance is made for slow moving inventories based on management’s assessment of
inventory movements.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash

equivalents comprise cash on hand and bank balances with original maturities less than three
months from the deposit date.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle such obligations;
and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are reviewed at the date of each consolidated
financial position and adjusted to reflect the best current estimate. Where the impact of the time

value of money is significant, the amount recognised as a provision is the present amount of
expected expenses required to settle the liability.

Trade payables e

Trade payables are recognise %W%L}Ma uelc?}s e coods and servi:;é recei

parties and subsequently carripd ouidas Adtadhddase? Using the effective interest rate.
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| - CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
| AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
- Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 Augzust 2019
' (All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated) .

P. Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recorded at fair value less the cost of obtaining the loan. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, and the
difference between the amounts received is recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
(less the cost of obtaining the loan) and the value that will be repaid over the borrowing period.
Borrowings and advances are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer the settlement of such liabilities for a period of not less than 12
months after the date of the consolidated financial statements.

A N

Current and deferred income tax

i

Current income tax
The Group’s current taxes due are calculated in accordance with the applicable Egyptian laws and
regulations.

-

The Group 15 subject to corporate income taxes. The Group uses tax advisors to estimate the
= income tax provision. In case of differences between the final tax outcomes with the initially
recorded amounts, the resulting impact on income tax and deferred tax are recognised in the year
in which they occur.

|

 p—

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is fully recognised. using the assets and liabilities method. on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carryving amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. The applicable tax rates are used to calculate the deferred
income tax.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Revenue recognition
The fair value of the consideration received or receivable including cash, receivables and notes

receivables arising from rendering the educational services is measured through the ordinary
course of the Company, stated net of discounts.

I -

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group; and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities as described subsequently.

|

The value of the revenue is not considered to be reliably measured except when the e:gmcted
obligations are settled. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taKing |

consideration the type of c 'tbm-ﬂrr-rj'pr'uﬁ-tmnsactlans and the speoiﬁcs 1}&1
& {?‘
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Buses revenues

The Group provides transport services to students through its owned schools. Buses revenues are
recognised throughout the period of rendering the services.

Rental revenues

Rental revenues are recognised net of any discount allowed by the lessor using the straight-line
method over the period in which the lessee uses the leased property.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
When a receivable generated from the recognition of interest is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount,

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases.

Payments made under operating leases are charged to the consolidated statement of income on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Employees' benefits

The Group pays contributions to the Public Authority for Social Insurance Plans on a mandatory
basis in accordance with the rules stated in Social Insurance Law. Once the contributions have
been paid, the Company has no further payment obligations. The regular contributions are
recognised as periodic cost for the vear in which they are due and as such are included in the staff
COsts.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be obtained to sell an asset or paid to convert a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

(1) In the principal market for the asset or Liability, or

(2) In the absence of a principal market, the most advantageous market.

The Group should be able to have access to the principal market or the mo advantggecﬁ]&
market.

The fair value of the asset or v :I:EE} ﬁ}_s:?.umptmns tha markéi;;palig ipants
may use when pricing the asset | 1Ty ass ing market pammpants hav& 1n:t$eir*ow
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

{(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

i

+

The measurement of the fair value of a non-financial asset takes into account the ability of the
market participant to generate economic benefits by using the asset at its maximum and best
condition or sell it to another market participant who will use the asset in its best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and where
sufficient data are available to measure the fair value, increase the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimize the use of inputs that are not observable.

The fair values of all assets and liahilities are measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements and are included in the fair value hierarchy described below, based on the lowest input
levels that are material to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 - Market prices (unadjusted) prevailing in active markets for similar assets or
liabilities.

- Level 2 - Other valuation methods in which the lowest levels of inputs that have a material
effect on the measurement of fair values are observable, either directly or indirectly.

- Level 3 - Valuation methods in which the lowest levels of inputs that have a material effect on
the measurement of fair values are not observable.

Segment reporting

Business segments are reported in accordance with internally submitted reports to senior
management which makes decisions on the resources allocation and performance assessment of
the Group's segments, and represented in the central management committee. Group activities are
divided into schools activities and higher education activities.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised in the Group's financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the shareholders® of the Parent Company’s General Assembly meeting.

Comparative figures

Comparative figures are reclassified, as they are consistent with the current presentation.
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.L,"
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

3. Financial risks management
(1) Financial risks factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk
(including foreign currency exchange risks and interest rate risks), credit risks and liquidity

risks. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on minimising potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

N S e

-

The Group's management aims to minimise the potential adverse effects of such risks on the

Group's financial performance.

The Group does not use any derivative financial instruments to cover specific risks.

{A) Market risks

R S R S S

o

[

|5
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i. Foreign currency exchange risks

Foreign currency exchange risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign currencies rates.

The Group is exposed to the risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates on
foreign currency positions, mainly the US Dollar. Management concluded that the
nature of its activities are not significantly exposing the Group to foreign currencies
risks. At the end of the period, the net foreign currency assets (liabilities)
denominated in EGP are as follows:

Currency 2019 ) 2018
US Dollars 12,549,282 1,375,364
Euro 80,431 -

Note (28) is illustrating the amounts that have been recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss relating to changes in foreizn currencies rates.

Al end of the period, if the US dollar had increased or decreased by 10%, the effect
on the consolidated financial statement after deducting related taxes would have
been as follows:

Currency 419 2018
US Dollars 1,254,928 137,536
Euro 8043 -

SN 3 oA S

. Interest rate risks
/- ?ﬁiﬁ X o 2 SIdiealMg | _
f,— .{{\;JJ;__;_,_ Interest rate risk is the risk That the faipvalue and ffuture cash flows of financial
{ _g]'_.i,.-.f_iﬁinstmmnents will fluctbate becaus® offcha¥ees in the market's interest rates.
‘n-lrm-n:::.gl ik o _

M & il iy

BN e The Group is exposeq to cash flow risk z changes in interest rates of its
N 1“ " #84Fs/and liabilities due after more than one vear bearing variable interest (bank
P "Feposits and credit facilities). The Group maintains an appropriate mix of fixed

:'f s and floating rate borrowings 1o manage the interest rate risks.
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Financial risks management (continued)

Note (17) is illustrating the borrowings and credit facilities owed by the Group.

The below table shows the analysis of sensitivity to possible and reasonable
changes in interest rates, while holding the other variables constant, on the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The sensitivity on the consolidated statement of profit or loss is the effect of the
assumed changes in the interest rates on the Group's results for one year based on
financial assets and liabilities with variable interest rates at the end of the period:

Effect of
consolidated
Increase/ profit or loss
decrease EGP
31 August 2019 300 basis points 2,006,390
3l August 2018 300 basis points 3,517,838

(B) Credit risks

Credit risk arises from current accounts and deposits with banks, as well as credit risks
associated with the Group’s customers represented in acerued revenues and amounts due
from related parties. Credit risk is managed by the Group as a whole.

For banks, the Group deals with banks with high credit ratings and high credit quality
which are supervised by the Central Bank of Egypt. For customers, management takes all
legal arrangements and documents when executing the transaction, which minimise credit
risk specifically for trade receivables. The Group collects most of its revenues in advance

before providing the educational and other related services. All necessary provisions are
formed to deal with each of customer delinquency issues.

Accrued revenue balances that remain outstanding for more than one year are fully
impaired.

Below are the balances that are exposed to the credit risks:

. ety 2018
Current accounts and deposits with banks 159,923,126 89,702,745
Due from related parties P = AL RS 422,144 140,382
Accrued revenues | eSS B DB A5 10,477,475
Investient Certificates ;{3a3122y 1,000,000 1,000,000
. ] "Qli\‘ l‘.\x o = ]
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.AE."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Financial risks management (continued)

(2) Capital risks management

(3)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders using the consolidated financial statements. The Group also aims to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the management may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, reduce share capital, issue new shares or reduce the debts due
on the Group.

The Group’s management monitors the capital structure using the ratio of net debt to total
capital. The net debt consists of total borrowings and outstanding credit facilities less cash on
hand and at bank. The total capital represents the Group’s total equity as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position as well as the net debts.

The following shows the proportito total capital on of net debt ratio at 31 August 2019 and 31
August 2018:

2019 2018

Borrowings and land purchase pavables _ 91,923,214 119,740,281
Gross debts 01,923,214 119,740,281
Less: Cash on hand and bank balances {163,026,674) (91,503.367)
(Surplus)Net debts (71,103.460) 28,236,914
Equity §90.038 689 504378565
Total share capital 318,935,229 532,615479

Net debt to total capital ratio %(8.68) 5.30%

Fair value estimation

The fair value is assumed to approximate nominal value less any estimated credit settlements
for financial assets and liabilities with maturities of less than one year, For variable interest
long-term borrowings, the fair value also approximates the nominal value as they are at
variable interest associated with the corridor rate declared by the Central Bank of Egypt.
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

4. Critical accounting estimates and personal judgements
(1) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Estimates and assumptions are evaluated based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will by definition, rarely equal the related actual results. The following are the
significant estimates and assumptions adopted by the Group:

(A) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligations; and the amount for such obligation can be reliably estimated. The group reviews
the provision at the date of each financial position, and adjusts it to reflect the best current
estimate by using the appropriate expertise.

(B) Impairment of coodwill

The group’s management annually assesses goodwill to determine whether goodwill is
impaired. The carrying amount of goodwill is reduced if it is higher than its recoverable
amount. Goodwill impairment losses are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and cannot be subsequently reversed.

»
»
1

i._i

(C) Impairment of acerued revenues

The valuation of impairment value in accrued revenues is made by monitoring the ageing of
debts and the ratios adopted based on management's best estimate through their experience.
Accrued revenue balances that remain outstanding for more than one year are fully impaired.

o

2) Critical personal judement in a lying the Group's accounting policies
P Judg ppiying P gp

-l

In general, applying the Group's accounting policies does not require the management to use
personal judgement (except those involving accounting estimates and assumptions referred to
in Note 4-1) that may have significant umpact on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

l
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARILES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

7. Projects under construction

This item consists of the following:

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transferred 31 August
2018 Additions to PPE 2019
Badr University 3,826,982 209,301,951 (6,084,587) 207,044,346
Others 3,217,675 6,773,628 (2,466,820) 7,524,483
7.044.657 216,075,579 (8.551.407) 214,568,829
Balance at Balance at
1 September Transferred 31 August
2017 Additions to PPE 2018
Badr University 14,778,452 46,781,042 (57.732,512) 3,826,982
Others - 3,947,133 (729.458) 3217675
14,778,452 50,728,175 (58.461,970) 7,044,657

Projects under construction related to Badr University represent the costs of completing the
constructions and buildings of the university as approved by the Ministry of Higher Education and are
added to the property, plant and equipment after completion of each stage.

8. Works in progress

2019 2018
Cairo Heights project - Residential buildings 21,527,997 21,519.775
Commercial mall land* 2,578,010 2,578,010
Medical Park 2,130,582 -
Payment under purchase of Lands** __ 59619.812 =
85,856,401 24,097,785

* Commercial mall land is under the registration with the competent authorities.

** Payment under purchase of land represents an advance payment for the purchase of land in El

Alamien, Assuit, New Suhag and New Mansura.
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

9. Investments in associates

Shareholding

Yo
2019 2018 a 2019 2018
New Soft Company 23% 23% 303,835 303,835
Perdive for Programming Company  48.5%  48.5% 255,000 255,000
Egyptians Health Care Company 25% 25% 57,166,325 31,786.070
57,725,160 32,344,905
Less:
Impairment losses in associates (303,835 (303335)
57,421,325 32,041,070

10. Unconsolidated subsidiarics

The historical cost of investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries is as follows:

31 August 2019 31 August 2018

- = ol et AN
International Health Care Company 1,126,285 1,126,285
Alex Company For Educational Services 325,000 - 325,000

1,451,285 1,451,285
Less: Impairment in value {1.451,285) {1,451,285)

These entities have not been consolidated as the value of these investments have been fully impaired

during the past years. Those entities have ceased operations and there are no liabilities to be incurred
by the Group.

11. Held-to-maturity investments

2019 2018

Investments certificates 1,000,000 1,000,000

Held-to-maturity investments represent cumulative-return-investment certificates of the Suez Canal
Bank maturing in 16 September 2019 with a cumulative rate of return of 12% (2018: 12%).

12. Inventories - Lﬁlmw;ﬁw“l‘;} .
Agidalidsallly |
i e 12019 2018
R f-p-0 1
Computer m{el@cﬁ@@l&quipm&pt ventorgg eV 1 W ¥ 661,838 2,527,821
rl.-" ;ﬁ‘f;-}bﬁ \ L e —
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AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

13, Debtors and other debit balances

2019 2018
Advances of suppliers 32,151,137 17,190,920
Prepaid expenses 19,341,922 20,613.033
Accrued revenues 16,035,780 10,477,475
Withholding taxes 3,212,970 3,725,269
Payment under investments in subsidiaries* 108,222.781 8.476.091
Due from related parties (Note 28) 7,422,144 140,382
Other debit balances 20,050,046 9,121,538
208,436,780 69,744,708
Less: Impairment in debtors and other debit balances (7.135,728) (3.924,297)
201,301,052 65,820,411

*Payment under investments in subsidiaries with an amount of 100,000,000 EGP that represents the
deposit for controlling 60% of Star Light company ( The Owner of British Colombia International
Canadian School) according to the paid signed contarct with WD Capital on 26 June 2019

Movement of impairment of debtors and other debit balances during the year is represented below:

EGP 6,693,560).

7,135,728 (31 August 2018: EGP 3,924,297).

2019 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,924,297 2,819,149
Formed during the vear 3.661.205 1,348,293
Provisions no longer required (449 774) (243,145)
Balance at the end of the ycar 7,135,728 3,924,297

P
A - P!

As at 31 August 2019, accrued revenue balances, due from related parties and other debit
balances which bear no impairment indicators amounted to EGP 16,322,196 (31 August 2018:

As at 31 August 2019, debtors and other debit balances subject to impairment amounted to EGP

annum, Interest rates on current account

~ay-

e e R i ™ i e o ]

14. Cash on hand and at banks / {;g:f‘;
el ey
L P 2019 2018
. \FHTQI"*,{ P

Current accounts with banks \“e,.f St 78,725,288 58,587,659
Term deposits N Sy 81,197,838 31,115,086
Cash on hand CEEE 3,103,548 1,800,622

» = 163,026,674 91,503,367

Lets S }mf&.ﬂ Py

Current accounts with banks and tim ﬁ’epWh local banks under the supervision of
Central Bank of Egypt. i rr

=ust 2018 7.5% and 14.5%) per
159.25% (31 August 2018: 11.25%) per annum.



CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUESIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Cash on hand and at banks (continued)

For the purpose of preparation of consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
included as of the date of the financial position:

2019 2018
(Cash on hand and bank balances 163,026,674 91,503,367
Restricted cash at banks {7,402 (2.447.410)
163,019,272 59,055,957

15. Share capital

The authorized capital is EGP 500,000,000 and the issued capital is EGP 233,116,130 distributed to
582,790,325 shares, minimal value per share is 0.40 EGP, all shares are fully paid in cash.

The sharcholders structure was as follows:

2019
Shareholding Nominal
%a value
Social Impact Capital "L.L.C" 51.22% 119,395,130
Kings (Y) Fund 5.05% 11,774,442
Others 43.73% 101,946.558
233,116,130
The shareholders structure was as follows:
2018
Sharcholding Nominal
Y% value
Social Impact Capital "L.L.C" !/-' ..f._,___{jgr'-.; \ 84.52% 135,195,130
Torzhim Ibrahim Al-Saidi dNTL N\ T0% 15,379,460
Others L * 8.46% 18,541,540
219,116,130

T

I. On 17 December 2018, share capital increased fmm'éGP 219,116,130 to EGP 233,116,130 with

an increase of EGP 14,000,000 distributed over 35 million shares with a nominal value of EGP
(.40 per share.

Ied

On 1 October 2018, Cairo for SR REA Bnate Development “Parent Company”,
offered shares of the Parent C

any in the i }Change through two tires, public offering
and private offering in the secanda ¢t in Otdgr to increase the ownership base of trading n
Egyptian Exchange with a mayimum of 287 253825 shares held by the Parent Company out of

547,790,325 shares with a perdentage ﬁww Parent Company’s issued capital with a
price of EGP 6 per share. The offering :

e

e — —



CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Wetes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

L AN amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

S&are capital (continued)

2) Public offerine
During the public subscription to the public, the maximum number of offered shares was
14.508,132 shares with a percentage of 7% from the total shares offered for sale, which
represents 2.65% of the Parent Company’s shares.

8) Pmvate offering
Daring the private subscription to the financial institutions, individuals with high financial

solvency. and individuals and institutions with experience in securities sector, the number of
offered shares was 192,750,893 shares with a percentage of 93% from the total shares offered
for sale. which represents 35.19% of the Parent Company’s total capital shares.

Socal Impact Capital LTD (the main shareholder in the Parent Company) used a part of the
shares sale proceeds to increase the share capital with an amount of EGP 210,000 distributed
ower 35.000.000 shares with a nominal value of EGP 0,40 per share in addition to a share
premuium of EGP 5,60 amounted to EGP 196,000,000. This increase occurred without taking
=20 consideration the priority rights of old shareholders in the subscription of the increased
shares. Participants in the public or private offering has no right to subscribe in this increase
£or this mcrease 1o be fully in favour of Social Impact Capital L.TD, the main shareholder in
e Pareat Company, this will be according to the decision of the Ordinary General Assembly
%o the Cairo for Investment and Real Estate Development “Parent Company™ on 3 July 2018.

The Extraordinary General Assembly approved the split of the Parent Company's shares with
2 ratio of 25 shares per each share accordingly, number of shares of the Parent Company’s’
became 587,790,325 share with nominal value of EGP 0.40. On 5 July 2018 the Parent
Company registered this split within its commercial register.

2 Hesenves
e Sallowing wble shows movement on reserves during the period/ year:
2019
Balance at Balance at
1 September Formed during 31 August
the year
Legm eeme 13,174,702 103,383,363 116,558,065
Smmsery reserve i 12,742,695 370,173 13,312,868
Speciml reserye 6,085,622 86.581,490 92,667,112
/ i f%" \ 32,003,019 190,535,026 222,538,045
A \ 2018
S :'fh::jzé;ﬁ _ﬂ_lh_lmim_____ Balance at
e ", ' | %t lﬁhﬁlﬁj‘pnned during 31 August
._r""t,., "‘wf:'m I < 5 awyy . the vear
Sy  AglaeliAzaisy—
Legal reserve = 8.7 o 4,454,017 13,174,702
Sesocy reserve § o o 454,017 12,742,695
Specal reserve TR —b.085,622 6,085,622
~— 17,009,363 14,993,656 32,003,019

AL



CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Reserves (continued)

A. Legal and statutory reserve
In accordance with the Companies Law No. 159 of 1981 and the Parent Company’s Articles of
Association, 5% of the net profit for the vear is transferred to the legal reserve.
The composition is discontinued once the legal reserve reaches 50% of the issued and paid up
capital.

Also, an amount of 5% is deducted from the profits to form the statutory reserve until the reserve
reaches is equivalent to 25% of the Parent Company’s issued capital. Once the balance reaches
below that limit, deduction should resume again.

General Assembly meeting during 31 August 2017 approved financial satements as of 31
December 2015 and financial position for eight months ended 31 August 2016. Accordingly for
the financial period 1 January 2016 untill 31 August 2016 as well as year ended on 31 December
2015 5% legal reserve and 5% statutory reserve approved from retained earnings as stated in the
article of association of parent company.

B. Special reserve

e S N (S S S S

An amount of EGP 7,852,416 of extinguishment of liability due from an entity related to a major
shareholder of the Parent Company of Cairo for Investment and Real Estate Development “Social
Impact Capital LTD” waived for the favour of all the shareholders, and recognised directly as
special reserve in the shareholder’s equity statement after deducting related tax effect of EGP

1.766.794. This transaction is considered to be done with shareholders in their capacity as
shareholders,

17. Borrowings and credit facilities

Current portion Non-current portion

Statement 2019 2018 : 2019 2018
Ar2b Investment Bank- credit facility 1,618,011 4 865,688 - -
J=tar National Bank loan (2) - 653,000,000 - -
{J=tar National Bank loan (3) - 483,400 - 1,208,500
{J=tar National Bank loan (4) 11,979,494 12,000,000 - 7,970,497
J=tar National Bank loan (5) - - 60,296,205 -
sms=rmational Company for Finance 8,164,984 6,313,390
L=zsa 6,804,127 14,678,515
~oper Egypt Finance lease loan 855476 744,221 2?-:{},{]82 1,125.275

22,617,967  89,897.436 66,879,677, 24,991,787

£ i My
' '\l?'t '\
Crede facilities from the Arab Invwﬂihgﬂr@st rate 0ff3.25% Qve, %13 cortidor
s = = = For g 111
e stated by the Central Bank, ‘ s w,ﬁuiil e e
|m 3 | 1gg. :
w -'_;' *. Ty, 1 TR
r = P 1 U'“ & :t‘" r :}
TYTEN st ¥ e
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.LE."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the yvear ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Borrowings and credit facilities (continued)

Qatar National Bank loan (2)

On 7 March 2015, the Parent Company signed a contract with Qatar National Bank for a long term
loan of EGP 100 million, at an interest rate of 2% above the Central Bank of Egypt (CBE) lending
rate, with a grace period of 12 months from the date of signing the contract ending in 27 February
2016, payable on 11 semi-annual instalments and the due date of the first instalment was 28 February
2016. The loan is jointly guaranteed by the Social Impact Capital {main shareholder), Cairo
Educational Services Company (subsidiary), International Information Technology Company
(subsidiary), the Egyptian Company for Education Systems (subsidiary) and International Company
for Education Systems (subsidiary).

On 1 October 2018, the Group settled the total amount of the loan amounting to EGP 65 million as an
accelerated payment, in addition to its related interests.

Clatar National Bank loan (3)

During the year of 2016, the Parent Company signed a contract with Qatar National Bank for a
medium term loan of EGP 4 million for the purpose of using it in the partial financing of purchase of
property, plant and equipment at an interest rate of 2% above the corridor rate announced by the
Central Bank of Egypt and the interest rate is amended according to the change in the lending rates
announced by the Central Bank of Egypt. A penalty of 1.5% is compounded up on late payment. It
was agreed that the loan matures on August 2021.

On 14 February 2019, the Group settled the total amount of the loan of EGP 1,691,900 as an
accelerated payment, in addition to its related interest.

Oatar National Bank loan (4)

During the financial year ended 31 August 2018, the Parent Company signed a contract for a medium
t=rm loan of EGP 20,000,000 for the purpose of completing Badr U niversity’s Projects, which are
wholly owned by the Parent Company. The contract ends on 31 August 2020, and this loan will be
paid semi-annually on 5 instalments amounted to EGP 4,000,000 excluding the related interests that
will be calculated at an interest rate of 1% above the lending rate announced by the Central Bank of
Ezvpt

Total loan balance reached EGP 11,979,496 at 31 August 2019 (31 August 2018: EGP 19,979,497).

Qatar National Bank Loan (5)

During the financial year ended 31 August 2019, the parent company signed a contarct for a medium
term loan of 100 million EGP for the purpose of completing Badr University’s Projects, which are
wholy owned by the parent company. The contract

Ends on 31 August 2024, and this loan will be paid on 9 semiannually installments excluding the
retaled intrests that will be caleulated at an intrest rate 1.5% above the lending rate announced by the

e e s =i
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Borrowings and credit facilities (continued)

The principal guarantees of the above loans are:

Transfer all income generated from operations of the schools and Badr University to a special
account with the lending bank and is used as an additional repayment method for the principal and
interest.

- Dividends are not to be distributed unless all loans related obligations for respective year are
fulfilled.

- Assets are not to be sold, pledged or given to third parties without obtaining a written approval
from the bank.

- Sharcholders' equity in the consolidated financial statements should not be less than EGP 420
million. Maintain financial leverage ratio (total liabilities/ equity) below 1-2 : 1. and the debt
service rate (profits before interest, tax and depreciation/ total financial liabilitics) shouldn’t be
less than 1.2 : 1.

- The company shouldn’t borrow any loans or credit facilities unless they obtain a written approval
trom the bank.

International Company for Finance Lease loan (Incolease)

On 23 February 2010, the Parent Company signed a preliminary contract with Incolease Company to
obtain a finance lease of EGP 31,9 million for sale and leasehack of a plot of land owned by the
Company at an interest rate equal to the lending rate announced by the Central Bank of Egypt pavable
over 84 monthly instalments starting 3 May 2010. Since this transaction does not qualify in its
substance to be a sale and leaseback transaction as it represents a collateralised loan by the asset "the
plot of land " and since this transaction is outside the scope of EAS 20 " Accounting rules and
standards relating to finance lease” the transaction was not considered as a sale and leaseback, instead,
it was regarded as a loan agreement subject to the above mentioned conditions.

During the nine-months ended 31 August 2016, the Company obtained the second tranche of the lean
under the same terms mentioned above. The total balance of the loan as at 31 Augsut 2019 was EGP
14,478,374 including interests (31 August 2018: EGP 21,482,642).

Upper Egypt Finance lease loan

During the eight-months ended 31 August 2016, Upper Egypt Leasing Company financed the
purchase of some of the property, plant and equipment of Cairo for Investment and Real Estate
Development Company under the two financing contracts dated 12 August 2015 and 18 August 2015.
Both contracts commenced on | January 2016.

Since the financing was made in cash, this transaction is not considered as a finance lease and outside
the scope of EAS 20, "Accounting Standards and Standards for finance lease", this transaction is
treated as a loan granted to the parent company and is recognised at present value of future cash
flows.

Amounts financed for both contracts amounted to EGP 3,156,160 excluding interests and payable

over 60 instalments. Total loan payable ba 2GP 1,125,558 at 31__Augus} 2019 "hlqluding

interests (31 August 2018: EGP- : { rg;etr\,;_-f.-:}-.},f \
e .
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

I8, Creditors and other credit balances

2019 2018

Accrued Expenses 37,939.978 29,525,176
Dividends Payables 14,725,392 15,701,287
Land purchase payable 2,425,570 4,851,058
Dwe 10 governmental agencies 15,584,000 15,085,183
Suppliers and contractors 89,436,479 15,777,096
Onher credit balances 17,319,776 15.732.275

177,431,195 96,672,075

I9. Advance revenues

Advance revenues represent the part of revenues that the Group has collected and has not provided the

educational services related to it until the date of the financial position.

2019 2018
Acdvance revenues 211,730,601 185,203,224
211,730,601 185,203,224

20. Income taxes

Income tax charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year is as follows:

2019 2018
Current income tax 64,650,433 37,982,716
Deferred tax o 341,965 1,209 8386

64,992 398 39,192,552

The tax on profit before taxation differs from the amount expected to be reached by applying the

Twerage tax rate applicable to the Group's profits as follows:

2019 2018

Accounting profit before tax 257,567,174 165,564,235
Income tax on basis of applicable tax rate 57,952,614 37,251,953
Add (less):
Non-deductible expenses 5,532,906 1,995,307
Income not subject to tax M _ (196,033) (54,708)
Unrecognized Deffered Tax assests { ™ 2= gy 3 U@ &3 831 161 -
Tax Differences from previous years} J 12 iy 1 (128250) -
Tax per the/st’.{temeg;i;&nf profit or I W 2 164,992,398 39,192,552
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.L."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Income taxes (continued)

Current income tax liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position:

2019 _ 2018

Balance at the beginning of the vear 41,075,377 23,421,486
Payments made during the year (39,621,374) (22,095,619)
Charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss during 37,982,716
the year 64,650,433

Charged to the consolidated statement of changes in - 1,766,794
shareholders” equity

Balance at the end of the year 66,104,436 41,075,377

21. Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities comprise temporary differences attributable to property, plant and equipment;

Balance at Movment Balance at
31 August for the year 31 August
2019 Revenue/ 2019

asset (liability)  (Expense)  asset (liability)

Property, plant and equipment (3,592,063} (341,965) (3.934.028)
(3.592,063) (341,965) (3.934,028)
Acquisition of Balance as at
Balance as at subsidiary Movement 31 August
1 September {(Note 29) for the year 2018
2017 Asset / Asset / Revenue / Asset /
{Liability) (Liability) (expense) {Liability)
Property, plant and equipment (2.403,629) 21,402 (1,209.836) (3,592 063)
(2,403,629) 21,402  (1,209,836) (3,592,063)
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

22. Provisions

2009 2018
Tax provision 32,188,257 26,488,695
Legzl provision 1,016,797 1,016,797
33,205,054 27,505,492
The movement of provisions during the vear is as follows:
2019
Balance at the Utilised
beginning of  Formed during during the Balance at the
_the year the year __year end of the year
Tax provision 26,488 695 6,541,606 (842,044) 32,188,257
Legal provision 1,016,797 - - 1,016,797
27,505,492 6,541,606 (842,044) 33,205,054
ot 2018 iy
Balance at the  Provided Balance at the
beginning of  during the Used during end of the
the year year the year vear
Tax provision 24994 828 2,752,426 (1,258,559) 20,488,695
Lzgal provision 1,016,797 - - 1,016,797
26,011,625 2,752,426  (1,258,559) 27,505,492

T2x provision

The tax provisions forms against received tax claims in addition to tax provisions expected against
uninspected prior years.

Tax provision has reached EGP 32,188.257 against received tax claims and expected claims against
uninspected prior years (31 August 2018: EGP 26,488,695) based on, Group management’s and the
Group’s external independent tax expert’s estimations.

i the estimations related to forming provisions have changed by 10% (increase or decrease), the
mmpact on the consolidated statement of profit or loss will be EGP 3,218,825 increase or decrease
(31 August 2018: EGP 2,648,869).

Provision for lawsuits
Provision for lawsuits reached EGP éﬂﬁﬂbﬁwg‘%ﬁﬁf EGP 1,016,797) based on the
Group’s legal expert. The provision is quWtes of each lawsuit separately,

s “H

If the estimations related to forming|provisionshafe dﬁngﬂd by 10% (ingredise or deerease), the
impact on the consolidated statement jof profigypedgss il be EGP {01,679 (31 &L’Lgusl- 2018: EGP
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(Al amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

=3. Operating revenues

2019 2018
Tmmion revenue 634 896,051 469,021,019
Bas revenue 35,424,080 28,548,672
Admission revenue 7,906,094 8,127,046
Oxher operating income 26,452,186 11,795,265
704,679,311 517,492,002
24 Activity cost
2019 2018
Emplovees’ wages, salaries and benefits 161,192,930 116,047,193
Depreciation expenses 56,263,838 44,806,897
Teaching tools, books and aids expenses 21,759,469 24,154,780
Mamienance, electricity, utilities, communications cXpenses 26,602,509 23,947 405
Tramsportation expenses 23942733 21,649,033
Rentals 13,347,504 7,619,437
Professional and consulting fees and charges, and penalties 9,610,797 4,915,193
Oxher expenses I_S,TM,S&E 5,464,249
328,484,348 248,604,187
25. General and administrative expenses
2019 2018
Emplovees' wages, salaries and benefits 40088377 39,823,192
Professional and consulting fees 37,549,701 25,743,546
IPO expenses 12,164,840 7,070,903
Mamtenance, electricity, utilities, communications expenses 5.433.101 6,179,344
Impairment losses of debtors and other debit balances 3,661,205 1,348 203
Operating and finance leases 2,584,883 1,986,337
Depreciation expenses 2319810 321,369
Salaries and allowances for board and committees memhers 571,953 386,507
and board of trustees |
Impawrment losses of investment WJ‘D La]'l'l‘; e | 303,835
Other expenses W‘M" L 11382084 4 . 8,609,759
o L 12565595527 92,273,085
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

et=s 1o the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

=mounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)
gyptia

26 Expenses by nature
2019 2018
Emplovess' wages, salaries and benefits 211,181,307 156,256,892
Depreciation expenses 58,583,648 45,628,266
Professional and consulting fees 47,160,498 30,658,739
h!nnce,eimricit}',utilitiesp{}mmunicati:}ns expeneses 32,035,610 30,126,749
Tramsporation expenses 23942733 21,649,003
Teaching tools, books and aid expenses 21,759,469 24,154 780
Remals 15.932,387 9,605,774
PO expenses 12,164,840 7,070,903
Impairment losses of debtors and other debit balances 3,661.205 1.348.203
Allowances and salaries for board of directors 571,953 -
Empairment losses of investments in associates - 303,835
Oher expenses 27,146,653 14,074,008
454,140,303 340,877,272
Z7. Other income
2019 2018
Sendry rentals 1,710,398 1,176,015
as station rental 1,408,114 1,341,057
Gam on sale of property, plant and equipment 2,141 1,902,212
Group share of profit of associates - 536,070
fmpairment losses of debtors and debit balances no longer - 243,145
required
Sundry revenues 1,790,451 2,010,990
4,911,104 7,209,489
8. Net finance income (costs)
2019 2018
Interest income (a2 25,629,112 11,010,324
Foreign exchange losses ;Ll-l-"“'w 2o 10 : (525,952) (106,007)
Interest expenses 2ysidall 3-"""‘1.-:_ L OA3TLAIY. (26,411,785)
pope /13795729 . (15,507,558)
- - 7 ! L7
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the vear ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

29. Related party transactions

During the year, the Group has made some transactions with related parties represented in the main
shareholder of the Group, its associates and some entities that are owned by major shareholders.
Outstanding balances from and to related parties resulting from these transactions are as follows:

Balances due from related parties

Nature of
Company relation 2019 2018
Egyptian Company for Numbering Other 140,382 140,382
Egyptain Health Care Associate 540,322 -
Maverix Company Associate 6,741,440 -
7,422,144 140,382
Related party transactions during the vear:
Movement
2019 2018

Social Impact Capital "L.L.C"
Bank transfer 15,550,000 8,112,844
Expenses paid on behalf of the Parent Company (8,974,179) -
Consulting contract maturity (5.850,000) -
bad debts written off (725,821) -
Nations for Real Estate
Bank transfers - 1,060,310
Esvptians Health Care
Contributions in share capital 27,922 280 13,704,804
Transfer to Investments in subsideries and associates (27,922.280) -

Funding Transferes [.571,103 -
Purchases (1,030,781 -

Foture for Educational Activities
Sale of fixed assetrs
Extinguishment of liability

5,011,428
. 7,852,415

Alex Company for Edueational Services

Reversals of payables f 306,121
Eevptian Schools Company
Acquisition of subsidiary 5,018,176

Future Educational Activities
Educational Revenue collections 12,618,785
Expenses paid on the behalf of the $ompany 3 (13,399,172) -
Management Consideration {217.877) -

< B e



CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.AE."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Related party transactions (continued)

On 7 May 2018, the management of the Parent Company signed a contract with Future
Educational Activities (subsidiary a shareholder in Social [mpact Capital Company) “the main
shareholder™ whereby the Parent Company sells both a building and a land of one of the schools
owned by the Group to Future Educational Activities Company. Parent Company valued the
building and land using the future economic benefits approach whereby it used information about
the expected values of the profits of the school and deducted the selling costs related to the
transaction. This sale was made for the amount of EGP 5,011,427 and recognised a gain on
disposal property, plant and equipment within other revenues of EGP 1,902,212 (Note 26).

Based on the same contract, the remaining portion of the Group's liability amounting to EGP
7,852,416 was extinguished and included as a special reserve within equity net of related taxes
amounted to EGP 1,766,794,

The Extraordinary General Assembly approved this transaction on 6 May 2018.

Top manasement compensation:

Top management compensation charged on the consolidated statement of profit and loss during
the year amounted to 8,218,819 EGP (2018: 7,365,311 EGP)

30. Non-controlling interests

The movement of non-controlling interests in subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial
statements during the period is as follows:

Retained 31 August
Capital earnings 2019

Balance at 1 September 2018 44 969,084 16,201,654 61,170,738
Non-controlling interests of acquired

companies . (4,569,668) (4.569.668)
Dividends : (4,543.493) (4,543,493)
Profit for the year - 4,312,786 4,312,786
Balance at 31 August2019 44,969,084 11,401,279 56,370,363

Retained 31 August
Capital carnings 2018

Balance at 1 September 2017 27,288,440 13,301,638 40,590,078
Non-controlling interests of acquired

companies : 17,680,644 - 17,680,644
Dividends . 4 S (3,739,380) (3,739,380)
Profit for th;z:' year \H Y s = L AmMAS L 6,639,396 6,639,396
Balance a¢31 August2018 | sLeStiudld 27 'ﬁg?g?usr. 16201654 61,170,738
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the vear ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

31. Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and acquisitions during the period and arises out of
the excess of the consideration paid in the subsidiaries, the non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of net assets of subsidiaries. It represent the acquiree payments for
future economic benefits of assets that can not be identified individually or recognised separately. The
goodwill is as follows:

2009 2018

Egyptian Education Systems 5,133,001 5,133,061

Educational Systems International 335,800 355,800

Global Educational Technologies 238,666 238,666

Cairo Educational Services 157,018 157,018
Cairo Misr for Educational Facilities ) 51936 51,936

' 5,936,481 5,936,481

Less:
Goodwill retaled to liquidating companies* (5,133,061) -
803,420 5,936,481

On 21 April 2019, the Extraordinary Generally Assembly Meeting for Egyptian Educational Services
decided to approve putting the company under liquidation for one year starting from the date the
company was put under liquidation in the commercial register. It was approved to appoint Mr. /
Mohamed Naguib Salah EI-Din as liquidator of the company. Since Cairo Investment and Real Estate
Development Company owns 100% of Egyptian Educational Services Company, Cairo Investment
and Real Estate Development Company will acquire all these assets. As a result, its goodwill was
impaired by EGP 5,133,061 as of 31 August 2019.

Subsidiaries are considercd as cash generating units for the goodwill impairment testing purposes.
During the period, the management conducted an impairment testing for the value of the goodwill
based on the “value in use”. Below is a summary for the significant assumptions employed for the
purpose of testing goodwill value by the management:

- Orowth rate  5.5%
- Discount rate 18%

Management used the estimated budgets approved by the Parent Company’s board of directors. The
value in use exceeded the carrying amount of the entities and no impairment of goodwill value have
resulted for any of the cash generating units.

On 2 May 2018, the Group acquired 55.6% of the shares of Egyptian Schools Company for
Educational Services “S.A.E”. The control was transferred to the Group at that date. The Group
expects to increase its market share as a result of this acquisition and achieving etonomic-benefits in

the future. No goodwill arose from this transacti - y ¢ Pl N
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Goodwill (continued)

The below schedule illustrates the consideration transferred to acquire the Egyptian Schools Company
for Educational Services “S.AE” and the fair value of the acquired assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests at the date of acquisition.

Acquisition cost at 2 May 2018

Cash paid (25,243,206)
Total acquisition cost (25,243.206)

On 7 August 2018, the Group acquired additional shares representing 5,4% of Egyptian Schools
Company shares to reach 61% of the Company’s shares in 31 August 2018.

Assets and liabilities acquired from Egyptian Schools Company for Educational Services “S,A,E” on
2 May 2018 were as follows:

EGP
PPE 45,502,918
Deferred tax assets 21,403
Cash at banks 3,181
Other liabilities (i (126,052)
Net fair value of acquired assets 45,401,450
Non-controlling interests at the date of acquisition (20,158,244)
Cash paid (25.243.206)
Goodwill -

32. Earnings per share

Following is the earnings per share taking into consideration the increase in share capital mentioned in
the commercial register approved on 17 December 2018:

2019 2018
Net Profit for the year 192 574,776 126,371,683
BOD remunerations (16,166,149) (10,207,871)
Employees profit share _ (15,715,115) (10,352,665)
_ 160,693,512 105,811,147
Weighted average of outstanding shares 572,501,863 --232.204.917
Earnings per share ' o 046
W‘w’ ey = -r-
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial

(All amounts

statements — For the vear ended 31 August 2019

in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

33. Tax position

(1) Cairo Education Services “S.A.E”

(A) Corporate tax

The Company was nspected from 1998 until 1999 and dye tax was paid.

The Company was inspected for the years from 2000 until 2004 on a deemed basis at a total
tax of EGP 5,793,131. The Company was notified of Forms 18 and 19 “Tax of fund

corporates tax™ and they were appealed on the legal deadlines and dispute s still pending
before the Internal Committec.

The Company was not inspected from 2005 to 2008.
regularly on the legal deadlines and pays the due tax
legal in the following years from 2005 1o 4 May 2008

The Company submits the tax returns
based on the tax returns submitted on the

The net profit of schools activity

is exempted from the commercial profits tax
with Law No. 91 of 2005,

in accordance

The compan

y has been inspected for the yars started from 2009 to 2010 and aJ|
been paid.

tax dues has

Years started from 2011 to 2019 has not been inspected yet.

(B) Withholdine tax

The Company applies the withholding tax under tax regulations as per Law No. 9] of 2005,

(C) Tax on earnings

The Company applies th
Law No. 91 of 2005.

¢ withholding tax and pays it monthly in accordance with the Tax

Quarterly tax returns are filed regularly and the com
The company has paid the tax due up to 2004.
The company was notified with a claim for work tax for the period from Januarv 1_ 2005

to 30 June 2005. The company has 36 salaries form for the period from | IuI;: 2005 ©
31 December 2011,

For the years from 1 January 2012 to 3] August 2019
examined until the date of the financial statements.

pany pays the tax on legal dates

, the Company has not been

= It was challenged within the legal deadlines and ﬂ;c"dispptq;%.ti!i pending before the
Internl Committee, v lse
e R
£ 17, I8 =
(D) Stamp duty B

@"Iﬂi,wzﬁ chiHenged within the
legal deadline and wasireferre to the appem| committezand the dispute is sti[] pending
until the date of preparifig the ﬁnaﬁi’arst ments,

WYEN rd ¥

g

The company paid its T i ﬁ'{ Eﬁ_ﬁi‘ 'e g ‘ M ,.".
The company was no gﬂu&hﬁ% Stamp Juty 13 the, periSdfrom February 1.
2003 to February 28, 6 W . m‘é )

2
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.E."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Metes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

" =mounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Tax pesition (continued)

- The company was notified of Form No. 3 stamp tax for the period from March 1, 2006
to June 30, 2010. It was challenged in the legal time and was referred to the Appeal
Committee. Final settlement by appeal committee amounted to 14,798 on 23 November
2014 was paid by the company on 29 January 2015,

- Years from | July 2010 to 31 August 2019, the Company has not been examined until
the date of the financial statements.

(E) Value Added tax
The Company is not subject to the provisions of Law No. 67 of 2016.

2 Cairo For Investment & Real Fstate Development %5 A E”

{4) Corporate income tax

Years from 1992 to 1993

The Company was inspected for the corporate income tax for the years 1992 until 1993 and
final tax notice from the decision of the appeal committee by amount of EGP 149,952 and
dispute between the Company and the specialized authority was referred to the court and the
dispute is still ongoing and the Company has paid the tax according to the appeal committee
decision.

Years from 1994 10 1995

The Company was inspected for the corporate income tax for the Years 1994 and 1995 with
amount of EGP 44,188 and form 18§ was notified and objected and form 19 was notified and
objected and has been appealed. The file was referred to the appeal committee and then
referred to the competent court, and the Company has paid the tax according to the appeal
committee decision tax notice.

Years from 1996 to 2001

The company was inspected for the corporate income tax for the years 1996 till 2000 and was
notified and objected to form 18, and form 19 has been appealed by EGP 2,152,266 and the
file was referred to the internal committee of the authority and then to the appeal committees,
and defence memorandum was submitted and the appeal committee decision had been issued.
The dispute between the Company and the authority was referred to the court and the dispute
is still ongoing as the assessment was based on the appeal commitiee decision for the years
1998 10 2001 for not applying the provisions of Article 21 of Law No. 157 of 1981 and its
amendments.

Years from 2002 to 2004
The authority has charged the company depending on estimation, and form 18 was notified
and objected and form 19 was notified and has been appealed. The file was referred to the
"""" 1 rayLsibmitted a request to re-examine these
g i

internal committee of the authy
years andithe dispute was t 'IW es and defence memorandum was
Sub‘gﬁttelaand the:appeal com ewmsmﬂm return the file to the authority

@ prepare for the c'::iompleticn the s nspeClign of the authority.

“rd =
r, oF
YWTENVed 09
on time apd the tax-wespait-based on the tax returns and the
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Tax position (continued)

Years from 2009 to 2010

The Company was charged with the corporate income tax for the years 2009/2010. The
company was notified in form 19 with an amount of EGP 7,513,695 and has been appealed,
and the file was referred to the internal committee of the authority.

Years from 2011 to 2012

The Company was charged with the corporate income tax for the years 2011/2012. The
company was notified in form 19 with an amount of EGP 8,784.566 and has been appealed,
and the file was referred to the internal committee of the authority to issue a decision of re-
examination.

Years from 2013 t0 2014

The company has been accounted for the estimate of the tax on profits of the funding
companies , and the company has been notified by Form “19” and it has been applealed the
file was referred to the internal committee of the authority to issue a decision of re-
examination.

Years from 2015 to 2019
The company has not been inspected vet the tax returns submitted on the specified tax dates
and the tax is paid based on the tax return.

(B) Stamp duty tax

Years from | Sep 1992 until 31 Qct 1997
The company was inspected until 31 October 1997, The Company was notified of 3 stamp
forms and an internal committee was formed and the due tax on the Company was paid

Years from 1 November 1997 until 30 September 2002

The Company was inspected and the Company was notified with 4 stamp forms and has been
appealed. The file was referred to the appeal committee. The final assessment was made by
the appeal committee amounting to EGP 23,585. The Company was pledged and lifted after
that and the tax amount was paid by scheduled checks.

Years from 1 October 2002 until 31 October 20053

The Company was inspected and notified with stamp forms No.3 & 4 and has been appealed.
The file was referred to the appeal committee and the final asgessment was made by the
appeal committee amounting to EGP 22,946, R4 b=

I'III L é‘:. B
(C) Salaries Tax . I‘ .
'!.Ilf -4 ’q-q ' ;."-
Years from 1992 to 1994 S .

NP g £
The company was accounted for and linked to. The due\;;ai%r,gh‘ﬂs'é' Meaps was pasd
L, ey

Years from 199510 1999 | ¢ &= M35 ,nLal1 A5

Salaries tax was linked to the*ampunt, of L 1P 5 basis of the non-appeal link and the
dispute was referred to the gomp ourt and, the dispute is still ongoing. The Compam
was pledged and lifted after that. The taypanfougtvas paid b}l' scheduled checks.
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(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Tax position (continued)

Years from 2000 to 2001
Salaries tax was notified and the form was objected to the legal deadline. The dispute was
referred to an internal committee and then to an appeal committee. The defence memorandum

was submitted and the due tax on the Company was paid by the decision of the appeal
committee.

Years from 1 January 2005 until 30 June 2005
The Company was inspected with a tax link on the Company amounting to EGP 496,329. The
form has been appealed in its entirety. The file was referred to the internal committee, and

then to the appeal committees. The defence memorandum was submitted and it was reserved
for the decision on 20 January 2018.

Years from 1 July 2005 until 2010
Salaries tax was assessed by EGP 9,030,294 and the Company was informed in form No.38

N B ) T g g

that it was objected and the file was referred to the internal committee, and then to the appeal
committees and the sessions to resolve the dispute are being attended.

Years from | July 2011 until 2019
The company has not been informed until the date of financial statements.

(D) General sales tax

The Company submits sales fax returns on a regular basis and at the legal times. The
Company was inspected from the start of the activity until 2005 and the tax differences
resulting from the inspection as well as the additional tax amounted to 687,341 EGP were

paid and the Company was inspected for the years 2006 until 2013. The company has not
been notified of other inspection.

(3) Egvptian Company for Education Systems “S.A.E”

{A) Corporate income tax

Years from 2005 to 2019

- Tax returns were submitted on the legal deadline and the Company is exempted from taxes
until 4 May 2008 in accordance with law No. 91 of 2005.

- The period from 5 May 2008 until 30 June 2017, the Company was not notified of the
inspection date taking into consideration law No. 91 of 2005 on 2 sample basis

- No inspection for the period from 1 July 2019 untill 31 August 2019,

(B) Tax on earnings
Years from 2005 10 2019

The Company pays the income tax monthly on the legal deadlines aml there .?b-ﬂ" szi=rass
tax notifications for such years. &~y

T RS 52
(C) Stamp duty 3 ij}nﬁuﬂ ey R~
Years from 2005 to 2019 Wra.ua-ﬁ‘l | e, e

£
The Company did not receiye any nmlﬁcat 3‘;5 related to the tax penud Ter, i

1qftfﬂahJu*
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Tax position (continued)

(D) General sales tax
Years from 2005 to 2019
The Company is not subject to the provisions of law No. 11 of 1991 and its amendments.

(E) Value Added Tax
The Company is not subject to the provisions of law No. 67 of 2016,

{4) Global Educational Technology “S.A.E”

(A) Corporate income tax

Years from 2003 to 2004

The Company submits the tax returns on the legal deadlines and it has not been notified of the

mspection during such years.

Years from 2005 to 4 Mav 2008
-The Company submits tax returns on the legal deadlines.

-The Company is exempted from the corporate income tax in accordance with Law No. 91 of

2005,

Years from 2008 to 2019

The Company submits the tax returns on the legal deadline and it has not been notified of the

inspection during such years.
(B) Salaries tax

Years from 2003 1o 2019

The Company pays the salaries tax monthly on the legal deadlines and there are no salaries

tax notifications for such vears.

(C) Stamp duty

Years from 2003 to 2019
The Company did not receive any tax notifications related to the tax period.

(D)} General sales tax

Years from 2003 to 2019 i L
The Company is not subject to the provisions of law No. 11 of 1991 anff its alneﬁﬁrnents.
Por g, ] :" .
| ,q?
(E) Valuc Added Tax Yoy T
-4

'f'f:ars from 20{]3 to 2{]19
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Tax position (continued)

(5) Future and Nations Company “S.A.L”

(A) Corporate Income tax

The Company has not been notified of the inspection since the inception to the date. The tax
return is prepared and submitted on the legal deadlines according to the requirements of the

Income Tax Law issued by law No. 91 of 2005.

{B) Tax on earnings

The Company has not been notified of the inspection since the inception to the date and
payment is made at the beginning of each month on the legal deadlines.

(C) Stamp duty

The Company has not been notified of the inspection since the inception to the date.

(6) Upper Egvpt for Educational Services 5.AE

(A) Corporate Income tax

Years from 2009 to 2019
Tax returns are submitted regularly and the Company has not been inspected to date.

(B) Salaries tax

Years from 2009 to 2019
The Company has not been inspected since the inception to the date.

The Company pays the salaries tax monthly on the legal deadlines and there are no salaries

tax notifications for such vears.
A provision of 25,000 EGP booked for dispute of salaries tax.

(C) Stamp duty

Years from 2009 to 2019
The Company has not been notified of tax claims.

(D)General sales tax

Years from 2009 to 2019
The Company is not subject to the provisions of law No. 11 of 1991 and'its Elmend.ncnts.

EyWalue Added T 2 e
(E)¥alue Added Tax e ,_,:ﬂ._!'r:-‘-‘; b
Years from 2009 t0 2019 e P
The Company is not subject t thems urwma 67 o£2016. P g
oS —
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Tax position (continued)

(7) Badr University 5.A.F

(A) Corporate Income tax

The income tax is calculated at the realised surplus in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations in this regard and using the tax rates enacted at the date of the financial
staternents. The income tax payable is recognised in the statement of revenues and expenses.

The University’s records were not inspected from the date of inception until the financial
position date 31 August 2019,

(B) Salaries tax

The University's records were inspected from the date of inception until 31 August 2018,

The University’s records were not inspected from | September 2018 until the financial
position date 31 August 2019.

(C) Stamp duty

The University’s records were not inspected from the date of inception until the financial
position date 31 August 2019.

(D) Withholding tax

The University's records were inspected from the date of inception until 31 August 2014,

The University’s records were not inspected from 1 September 2014 until the financial
position date 31 August 2019,

34. Commitments

AL

B.

Capital Commitments

Capital commitments contracted on the date of the consolidated financial statements are as
follows:

2019 3018
Fixed assets 3 24 TET AR 3462 146
(et ﬂﬁm" ‘é‘gj <
Operating lease
The Group is leasing many MM; one of the schools’ for cpez'rmﬂ
purposes. The term of these co ract_v. are lftg & ygﬁ; i y |
1l ——
Total future payments for the | conlt};‘g.s Arc 23 tﬁ.\m&-——*
2019 2018
Less than one year 30,207,959 14,380,000
Over 1 year and less than 5 years 154,214,652 73,486,257

~81=
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CAIRO FOR INVESTMENT AND REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT "S.A.L."
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements — For the year ended 31 August 2019

(All amounts in the notes are shown in Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

35. Subsequcent Events

- On 1 September 2019, The General Assembley Meeting approved on the divedends distrubution
amounted to EGP 40,000,000 on the company's sareholders from 31 August 2018 retained
garnings.

- -In respect of President of Egypt Decree dated 21 October 2019, Seven new faculties were
approved on Badr Univeresty, which are Human Medication, Natural Health Science Technology,
Veterinary Medication, Political Science and International Relations, Life Technology, Humanity
and Social Science and Rights, in which the beginning of the learning/studing year for the faculty
of Human Medication maximum by September 2022 allingning with the stablishment and
operation of the univeritvies hospital.
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